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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 

Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the Charitable 
Company for the year ended 31 August 2019. The annual report serves the purpose of a trustees' report, a directors' 
report and a strategic report under company law. 

The trust operates 4 secondary schools and 2 combined primary and secondary schools across England. Its 
academies have a combined pupil capacity of 7,537 and had a roll of5,324 in the school census on 3rd October 2019. 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
Constitution 
Woodard Academies Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's 
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the trust. 

The Charitable Company operates as the Woodard Academies Trust. 

The trustees of Woodard Academies Trust are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of 
company law. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these financial statements are 
approved, are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. 

Members' liability 
Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the 
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount 
as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. 

Trustees' indemnities 
The trust has in place trustees' indemnity insurance. For 2018-2019 the policy had a limit of indemnity of £1 ,000,000. 
The cover was for legal liability for claims arising from a breach of professional duty by reason of any neglect, error 
or omission. For 2019-2020 the trust has arranged insurance through the risk protection arrangement (RPA) for 
academies. 

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees 
At any time, the trust board can include individuals nominated by the Woodard Corporation as sponsor as well as one 
individual nominated by the Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education who is the co-sponsor of St Peter's Academy. The 
trust looks to ensure a mix of skills and selects new trustees on the basis of background, experience, specialist skills 
and support for the Woodard Christian ethos. Candidates are considered by the trust board which makes a 
recommendation to the Woodard Corporation Board which confirms the appointment as the sponsor of the trust. 

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees 
New trustees meet with members of the senior management team as well as the chair of the board for an induction 
and familiarisation. Induction is tailored, depending on experience, and undertaken on a one to one basis. 
The trust has provided training on safeguarding and data protection over the past year and plans more 
comprehensive training in the coming year. 

The Executive Team appoints the senior staff to be employed by the trust, as well as the principals of the academies. 

Organisational structure 
The trust board determines the overall policies and strategies of the trust, with the support of the appropriate sub 
committee and the senior management team. 

The day to day administration of the trust is undertaken by the Executive Team within the strategy, policies and 
procedures set by the trust board, which provide for significant personnel and expenditure decisions and major capital 
projects to be referred to the trust for prior approval. These policies and procedures are based on guidance from the 
Department for Education. 

The day to day management of each academy is delegated to the principal, working closely with the local academy 
council, overseeing educational, pastoral and administrative functions in consultation with the senior staff. 

Individual academies are supported by their local academy councils that operate as sub-committees of the trust. The 
councils in some cases are supported by sub-committees. During the year ended 31 August 2019 the academy 
councils and their sub-committees met at least once a term. A trustee is linked to each academy and will report back 
to the main board on matters of significance. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Councillors are recruited on the basis of nominations from the trust, from community academy contacts including 
parents and staft, and from co-sponsors, as well as by advertisement. Local academy councillors and clerks to the 
individual academy councils are provided with induction training and a wider programme of training events is 
organised according to needs. In recruiting local academy councillors, a similar mixture of skills and experience to 
that of the board of trustees is sought. 

Whilst every eftort is made to retain consistency across academies on key elements, local variation according to 
circumstances is allowed. 

The principals oversee the recruitment of all academy staft, supported by the Executive Team and academy councils 
for senior appointments. 

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 
The trustees set the remuneration and benefits of the Chief Education Officer and an approved pay scale is in place. 
Each year the chair of the trust, plus one other trustee, conducts a detailed annual appraisal as well as an interim 
appraisal halfway through the year, and recommends any changes to remuneration to the board, in line with the pay 
scale. The board is conducting an independent review of levels of pay for senior executives at comparable academy 
trusts, which will be completed by the end of 2019. The remuneration and benefits of other key staft, including the 
academy principals, are determined by the Chief Education Officer in consultation with the chairs of the academy 
councils and trustees. Pay scales, approved by the trust board, are in place for all key staft. Any approvals for cost 
of-living pay increases are brought to the board via the Finance & General Purposes Committee. 

Key management personnel comprise the trustees and the members of the executive and senior management teams 
as shown on page 1 of the annual report. 

Trade union facility time 
In the year the trust has had no full-time or part-time union officials employed. However, the trust does pay into local 
facilities time pots. 

Related parties and co-operation with other organisations 
Woodard Academies Trust was established by the Woodard Corporation to deliver its strategy of operating academies 
across the UK, in line with the vision of its founder Nathaniel Woodard. The Memorandum and Articles of the Trust 
allow The Woodard Corporation (charity number 1096270) to appoint and remove the majority of the trustees (the 
'sponsor directors') and the two companies work closely together. The Woodard Corporation consolidates the results 
of the Woodard Academies Trust into its consolidated financial statements. 

The joint sponsors of the first two Woodard Academies, The Littlehampton Academy and Sir Robert Woodard 
Academy, which opened on 1 September 2009, are the Woodard Corporation and West Sussex County Council. The 
Woodard Corporation and the Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education are joint sponsors of the St Peter's Academy in 
Stoke, which opened on 1 September 2011. The Woodard Corporation sponsors St Augustine Academy, Maidstone 
that also opened on 1 September 2011. The Kings Priory School opened as an academy on the 1 September 2013 
following the merger of The King's School, Tynemouth (previously a fee-paying independent school in the Woodard 
group) and The Priory Primary School, a maintained school. On 1 st April 2017 the trust acquired Polam Hall School, 
previously a Free School. The Department for Education (OtE) is the primary funding body for the academies in the 
trust, via the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). 

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 

Objects 
The trust's objects, as set out in the Memorandum of Association, are to advance for the public benefit education in 
the United Kingdom, in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools (the 
"Academies") oftering a broad curriculum with a strong emphasis, but in no way limited to one or a combination of the 
special isms specified in the funding agreements entered into with the Secretary of State for Education ("Secretary of 
State") relating to each of the academies. The objects are to be conducted in accordance with the principles of the 
Church of England. 

Aims 
Within the objects set out in the Memorandum and Articles of Association, our academies aim to create an 
environment which nurtures children, helps them to get the best from themselves and allows them to develop to fulfil 
their potential. We aim to provide students with a first class education and a wide range of opportunities. This is done 
in a way that is consistent with the Woodard ethos that every child will be valued, respected and cared for, to provide 
the best learning experience for all. We welcome students and families from all faiths or none. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

The trust provides education for students of all abilities. All children who apply are admitted (up to the capacity of the 
academy), with no academic selection (apart from reaching the necessary standard for A level study for sixth form 
students). 

Consistent with other academies in the United Kingdom we aim to raise the educational outcomes from the levels 
inherited from the predecessor schools, and to increase student numbers. The trust is committed to playing its part in 
the UK academies initiative and aspires to open further academies in the coming years. 

Strategies and Activities 
The trustees carried out a comprehensive strategic review in February 2017, which the trust continues to implement. 
Following the review and in consultation with the academies, the trustees agreed the following vision statement: 

"For the benefit of the children in our academies and the communities we serve - 

• We commit to provide outstanding learning experiences to nurture the unique potential of every individual; 
and to build strength, confidence and respect for others so all can flourish; 

• Grounded in Christian values, we welcome those from all faiths and none, promoting the spiritual and moral 
development of each person and encouraging rich and diverse cultures in our academies; 

• We are creating a network of vibrant learning communities with a strong collaborative culture anchored in 
professional respect and continuous improvement.' 

The vision statement drives the trust's strategy, underpins the improvement planning process and has resulted in the 
trust agreeing the following key focus areas: 

School improvement - accelerating pupils' progress and raising standards through responding to identified needs to 
enable academies to flourish; 

Teacher and staff development - developing professional networks to enable every member of staff to be well 
equipped with the skills and knowledge they need to become excellent teachers and to develop their careers; 

Expansion - boosting pupil numbers at existing academies and securing new recruits to the Woodard Academies 
Trust; 

Rationalisation - increasing efficiency and effectiveness in service provision across our academies to enable the 
trust and its academies to withstand the current budget pressures and those anticipated over the next five years; 

Governance - continuing to develop the effectiveness of the trust board and promoting good communication with, 
academy councils and the wider Woodard family. 

Public benefit 
In setting objectives and planning activities, the trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's 
general guidance on public benefit and in particular to its supplementary guidance 'The Advancement of Education 
for the Public Benefit'. The principal activity has been the governance of academies providing public benefit at no 
charge to the students in attendance. 

In December 2018 the trustees agreed a key short-term variation to these strategic priorities, which was to suspend 
the recruitment of new schools to the trust for a year. At the same time a new Senior Executive was appointed on a 
short-term contract to 3151 December 2019, with funding support from the Woodard Corporation, to increase the 
capacity of the senior management team. This enabled the trust to improve focus on finances and reserves at a time 
of intense pressure primarily due to Government funding levels, and to create more time for the Chief Education 
Officer to focus on school improvement. In addition, in July 2018, the trust hired a new Chief Financial Officer who 
has built a new central finance team. 

These changes resulted in a successful year for the trust, with encouraging improvements in the key focus areas: 

School improvement - four academies increased Progress 8 scores this summer with three scoring substantial 
rises, and the fourth showing a three-year improving trend. One academy's Progress 8 declined, but the academy's 
senior team and trust executives have clear plans to improve. Kings Priory was inspected by Ofsted in March 2019 
and judged to be Good. St Peter's was inspected in May and all bar one areas were inspected as Good (Outstanding 
for personal development and welfare) but the overall assessment was Requires Improvement based on the three 
previous years' result. The inspection came before the summer's improved Progress 8 score. Littlehampton and Sir 

5 



WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Robert Woodard had section 8 Ofsted inspections that reported they were both taking 'effective action' towards a 
Good inspection. 

Teacher and staff development - school leadership remains stable, and skills and capacity have been added to 
senior leadership teams. As our academies improve so has our ability to recruit high quality staff despite difficult 
national and local circumstances (especially in Littlehampton). St Peter's, St Augustine and Sir Robert Woodard have 
developed strong ITT links leading to a steady supply of NQTs. Other examples of strong professional network 
development include Sir Robert Woodard and Littlehampton working closely with Woodard independent schools to 
improve tuition in specific areas and to increase wider opportunities for students. 

Expansion - overall pupil numbers across the trust have increased by 4% year-an-year as of October 2019, and 
Year 7 intake is now full at every academy except for Littlehampton. 

Rationalisation - the senior management team has increased savings across a range of major expenditure 
especially insurance and catering, and continues to explore savings on utilities, software, IT, photocopiers and 
cleaning contracts. The team has also worked increasingly effectively with the Procurement Manager at Woodard 
Corporation across multiple cost centres. 

Governance - the trust executive has planned and implemented a comprehensive training schedule for academy 
councils, including induction, with a special focus on safeguarding. The executive has developed strong, open and 
professional relationships with academy leaders, with consistent views on strengths, weaknesses and priorities. The 
trust has also increased engagement with Woodard Corporation which continues to assist on financial, procurement 
and pastoral matters. 

Financial - The year end outturn at 31'1 August 2019 of a £280k deficit represents a very strong improvement of 
£575k versus budget. Altering the balance of the staff to achieve a three-percentage point reduction in the ratio of 
staff as a percentage of total costs has been key. For 2019/20 five out of six academies have an in year balanced 
budget or a small surplus, while the sixth, Polam Hall, is set to balance by 2020/21. 

Polam Hall is still completing the challenges of transition from an independent to free school in 2015, with attendance 
increase in pupils from 200 to over 750. The academy has received permission to close its small sixth form, which 
has become economically unsustainable, from 1 st September 2020, but it has kept the sixth form for 2018/19 and 
2019/2020, in the interests of the children, which added to financial pressures. The executive has worked closely with 
academy leaders to address curriculum, senior leadership, staffing levels and major cost centres to achieve balance 
from 2020/21. 

For further information on financial performance see the trust financial review on page 11. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

STRATEGIC REPORT 
Achievements and performance 

Context 

Pupils 
Current rrotal number Pupils with whose Percentage of 

Academy Ofsted of pupils on EHCP or Boys on Girls on first children 
Overall roll roll language eligible for 

Judgment roll SEN support is not Pupil Premium 
English 

rrhe 
Littlehampton RI 1,337 230 664 673 149 28042% 
IAcademv (TLA) 

Kings Priory Good 1,387 156 705 682 42 8.71% School (KPS) 

rrhe Sir Robert 
¡Woodard RI 1,091 195 604 487 34 27.69% IAcademy 
(SRWA) 

St Peter's CafE RI 998 181 465 533 359 37.03% IAcademy (SPA) 

Polam Hall RI 754 71 332 422 54 16.65% School (PHS) 

St Augustine Good 757 142 408 349 78 32.01% !Academy (SM) 

rrrust (WAT) NIA 6,324 975 3,178 3,146 716 24.57% 

KS4 Performance 

Academy Progress 8 score & description Attainment 8 score 

rrhe 
Littlehampton -0.49 (below average) 42.7 
Academy (TLA) 

Kings Priory 0.28 (above average) 55.8 School (KPS) 

The Sir Robert 
Woodard -DA (below average) 41.8 
Academy (SRWA) 

St Peter's CafE -0.39 (below average) 42.7 Academy (SPA) 

Polam Hall -0.09 (average) 48.3 School (PHS) 

St Augustine -0.56 (well below average) 34.6 Academy (SM) 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

St Augustine Academy 

St Augustine is an 11-16 mixed academy with 757 pupils on roll and a specialist Autism Resource Centre. It 
was rated as Good overall by Ofsted in both 2014 and 2018. GCSE results and progress measures, however, 
were disappointing this summer, though should be viewed in the context of challenging demographics. The 
Trust and academy leaders are well aware of weaknesses and remain focussed on addressing them. 

The proportion of students who are eligible for additional Pupil Premium funding is above the national average 
and the proportion of those for whom English is an additional language is below the national average. The 
proportion of students who are entitled to support for a special educational need is above the national average 
and those who have an education, health and care plan, is broadly in line with the national average. Ofsted 
inspectors found that pupils with special educational needs are particularly well served. 

The academy offers a broad and innovative curriculum which is accessible to students of all aptitudes and 
abilities, including an expanded vocational offer and there is a high level of student engagement and satisfaction. 
As a newly built academy in 2011, it has excellent facilities. The academy prides itself on its ethos and 
expectation of personal responsibility and self-discipline, excellent behaviour, high levels of attendance and 
punctuality, and a natural and positive respect for others. 

Sir Robert Woodard Academy 

Sir Robert Woodard is a mixed 11-18 academy primarily serving Lancing and Sompting. There are 1,091 pupils 
on roll, including 100 post-16. It was rated Requires Improvement by Ofsted in both 2013 and 2018 but its recent 
July 2019 section 8 inspection noted that effective action was being taken for the academy to become good. 
The academy is increasingly popular and has seen a substantial recent rise in pupil numbers. 

The proportion of students eligible for additional Pupil Premium funding is broadly in line with national averages 
and the proportion for whom English is an additional language is below national averages. The proportion of 
students who are entitled to support for a special educational need is well above national averages and the 
proportion of those who have an education, health and care plan, is below the national average. Pupils' 
behaviour is good and the academy promotes their personal and social development well. 

The curriculum has some innovative aspects, such as providing the south of England hub for the Institute for 
Research in Schools (IRIS), giving students opportunities to take part in and contribute to real-life scientific 
research. The academy was newly built in 2012 and has state of the art facilities, including an impressive sports 
hall. The academy has developed excellent links with primary schools and local Woodard independent schools, 
which afford exceptional opportunities for the performing arts, sport and careers education. The academy was 
a winner in the Careers Excellence Awards 2019 for Excellence in Partnership Working. 

The LiUlehampton Academy 

The Littlehampton Academy became a sponsored academy in 2009. It is a large, mixed 11-18 academy with a 
roll of 1,337, including 117 in Sixth Form and a special centre for up to 15 pupils with autistic spectrum. Ofsted 
graded the academy as Requires Improvement in 2018. However, the academy's leadership has stabilised and 
current performance data indicates that the academy is on a three-year improving trend at KS4. An Ofsted 
monitoring visit in April 2019 confirmed the improvements. 

The academy is in an area of high deprivation. The proportion of students who are eligible for additional Pupil 
Premium funding is slightly above national average and the proportion of those for whom English is an additional 
language is below national average. The proportion of students who are entitled to support for a special 
educational need is above national average and the proportion of those who have an education, health and 
care plan, is below the national average. 

The academy has excellent facilities including artificial and grass playing fields, an impressive sports hall, dance 
and drama studios. Students are encouraged to be confident, demonstrate self-respect and to present 
themselves smartly at school. They have been praised for their courtesy and consideration of others. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

St Peter's Academy 

St Peter's is a mixed 11-16 academy, with 998 pupils on roll, co-sponsored by Woodard Academies Trust and 
the Lichfield Diocese Board of Education. Serving the whole community of Stoke-an-Trent, an area of high 
deprivation, it has become increasingly popular and has rising pupil numbers. Ofsted inspection in May 2019 
praised the effectiveness of the academy's leadership and quality of teaching and found the personal 
development, behaviour and welfare of pupils to be exceptional. St Peter's remains as Requires Improvement 
because progress is not yet consistently strong across the academy, due to a legacy of underachievement 
which is now being reversed, with solid Progress 8 improvement this summer. All other aspects of the academy's 
work were graded Good. 

The proportion of students who are eligible for additional Pupil Premium funding and those for whom English is 
an additional language are above national averages. The proportion of students who are entitled to support for 
a special educational need is in line with the national average and the proportion of those who have an 
education, health and care plan, is below the national average. 

St Peter's boasts a state of the art, vibrant learning environment and impressive resources, including music 
rooms and a recording studio. Classrooms encourage creativity and there are in excess of 400 student 
computers, laptops and iPads. The sporting facilities are some of the best in the city with a full-size 3G pitch 
and multi-purpose Sports Hall. Links with parents and the wider community are strong and productive and the 
academy is well placed to continue to improve and to deliver its collective mission to do its best by all pupils. 

Kings Priory School 

Kings Priory School is an all-through 4-18 academy with several unique features. It joined the Woodard 
Academies Trust in September 2013, following a merger between a thriving independent school, The King's 
School Tynemouth, and the outstanding maintained Priory Primary School. The new school, based in the heart 
of Tynemouth, is co-educational with 1,387 current pupils. The merger was the first of its kind under the new 
academy programme. A short inspection in March 2019 confirmed the 2015 Ofsted judgement of Good. Leaders 
are not complacent and are striving to move the academy from Good to Outstanding. 

The proportion of students who are eligible for additional pupil premium funding and those for whom English is 
an additional language are below national averages. The proportion of students who are entitled to support for 
a special educational need is above the national average and the proportion of those who have an education, 
health and care plan, is below the national average. 

The academy operates as a First School, Middle School and Senior School across neighbouring sites in the 
centre of Tynemouth, an historical and picturesque setting which provides a stimulating learning environment 
for pupils of all ages, including an outdoor learning specialism and the opportunity for every pupil to be a 
musician. The three tiers work closely together to maximise the benefits of an all-through academy. An 
innovative curriculum timetable facilitates a comprehensive enrichment programme, offering a wide range of 
activities from fencing and surfing to animation and more, to be integrated into the school day. 

Polam Hall School 

Polam Hall is currently an all-through 4 to 18 academy set in beautiful grounds, with a roll of 754, including 
twelve boarders. However, the sixth form and boarding facility will close at the end of the 2019/20 academic 
year. The academy re-opened as a Free School in 2015, having previously been a fee-paying independent 
school, and became part of Woodard Academies Trust as a sponsored academy in 2017. 

In 2018, Ofsted judged the academy as Requires Improvement, with the exception of the early years' provision, 
which was graded as Good. There has been considerable improvement in Key Stage 4 achievement in 2019. 
Accelerating improvement in Key Stage 2 is a key priority. 

The proportion of students who are eligible for additional Pupil Premium funding and those for whom English is 
an additional language is below national averages. The proportion of students who are entitled to support for a 
special educational need is above the national average and the proportion of those who have an education, 
health and care plan, is below the national average. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

The academy has experienced significant financial pressures over the past few years and the Trust is supporting 
the academy to address the issues. The sixth form had shrunk to uneconomic levels and, while permission has 
been received to close, the academy has kept the sixth form open in 2018/19 and 2019/2020 in the interests of 
the children. Despite the financial burdens, the academy produced its best A level results in 2018/19. Some of 
the buildings require extensive renovation. However, the academy has many positive qualities. Both the Junior 
and Senior schools provide a broad curriculum which develops character and resilience as well as academic 
ability. The academy provides excellent pastoral care. The all-through nature of the academy means that 
transition into the Senior School is seamless. 

Key performance indicators 
The Woodard Academies Trust monitors the performance of the academies. We measure the following Educational 
KPls: 

Early Years 
% meeting Good Level of Development 

Yr1 
% reaching the required standard in Phonics 

KS1 
% Meeting expected in reading 
% Meeting expected in writing 
% Meeting expected in maths 
% reaching greater depth in reading 
%reaching greater depth in writing 
% reaching greater depth in maths 

KS2: 
% meeting expected standard in reading 
% meeting expected standard in writing 
% meeting expected standard in maths 
% meeting expected standard in combined RWM 
% reaching greater depth in reading 
%reaching greater depth in writing 
% reaching greater depth in maths 
% meeting combined greater depth in RWM 

KS4 
Progress 8 Score 
Attainment 8 Score 
% Entering EBacc 
% Achieving EBacc at 5+ 
Grade 5+ in English and Maths 
EBacc Average Points Score 
% Staying in education or entering employment 

KS5: 
Progress Score 
Average Result (grade) 
Average result (point score) 
Grade and points for student's best three A levels 

ID 



WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Trust financial review 
Income for the year was £35.6m (2018: £35.0m) and was primarily provided by the DfE via the ESFA by means of 
standard grants to cover operational and capital costs at each academy. Additional funds were received from letting 
facilities to third parties, from bank interest and from sales to students for meals, uniform and equipment. All 
academies actively rent out facilities to community organisations. 

Expenditure for the year was £39.3m (2018: £39.0m) of which the largest cash element was staff costs of £28.2m 
(2018: £28.0m). Net expenditure for the year was £3.7m (2018: £4.0m) after a depreciation charge of £2.6m (2018: 
£2.9m). 

The Woodard Academies Trust (Trading) Company made a surplus of £137k during the year (2018: £107k). The 
results of the trading company are included in the results of the trust, but no separate group balance sheet is prepared 
as it is immaterial to the overall results of the trust. 

Net pension liabilities increased by £3.9m to £9.7m. At present, this does not affect the day to day operations, but 
reflects a challenging future climate for pension costs, since cash contributions are likely to increase. 

Cash held reduced from £2.3m on 31 August 2018 to £2.0m on 31 August 2019. 

Following submission of deficit 2018/19 budgets by the academies, the trust undertook a wholesale review of financial 
process and management. The trust now has a robust and embedded budget management framework and financial 
review processes. All academies have underlying sustainable budgets, with Polam Hall School forecasting a balanced 
budget for 2020/21 following closure of the sixth form and boarding facilities and full implementation of staff 
restructuring plans. The Financial Delegated Authorities have been fully reviewed and the importance of senior 
management engagement and training has been prioritised across the trust. This work is reflected in the year end 
outturn at 31 st August 2019 of a deficit of £280k versus a deficit budget of £855k. 

Financial and risk management objectives and policies 
The trustees are responsible for the identification and management of risk for the trust as a whole. A formal review 
of risk reporting was undertaken in 2018/19 resulting in a revised format to the trust risk register. The risk register is 
presented, discussed and amended as required at the Finance & General Purposes Committee, the Audit Committee 
and the board. In addition, educational risks are discussed at the Education Committee. The terms of reference for 
all committees were reviewed in 2018/19 and new terms of reference were agreed and adopted at the board meeting 
on 22nd October 2019. 

Reserves policy 
Net assets of £87.7m (2018: £94.1 m) have been carried forward into 2019/20, consisting primarily of fixed assets of 
£96.5m (2018: £98.6m) and cash of £2.0m (2018: £2.2m). The funds consist of: a fixed asset fund of £96.6m (2018: 
98.8m), a general fund (restricted and unrestricted) of £0.7m (2018: £1.0m) and a pension reserve with a deficit of 
£9.6m (2018: £5.7m). 

Trustees consider it essential to review the reserves levels held by the trust. This review process is undertaken as 
part of the annual budget setting process, and discussed regularly throughout the year. The unrestricted reserves at 
the year end stood at £0.7m (2018: £1.0m). Trustees have set a target range for the net unrestricted general fund, 
which represents the amount deemed to be necessary to deal with unexpected emergencies and the capacity to 
respond to un-planned opportunities. Trustees have assessed this as lying in a target of 3-5% of annual income each 
year on a non-cumulative basis; which equates to approximately £1.0-1.7m. The trust is reviewing budgets and costs, 
as described further within the going concern section of this report. The key elements that will enable the trust to 
rebuild reserves to its target levels are: 

Ensuring Polam Hall budget is balanced by 2020/21 
Ensuring that all other academies remain balanced at worst, with the aim of small surpluses each year. This 
may be further enabled if new ESFA funding levels increase as indicated for 2020/21. 
Receipt of £250k compensation payment from Balfour Beatty related to building works at Sir Robert Woodard. 

Funding for essential building repairs comes from the ESFA School Condition Allocation (SCA). Unspent SCA funding 
at the year-end is held within the restricted fixed asset fund and this amounts to £1 08k (2018: £156k). 

Trustees regard the reduction in the level of unrestricted reserves during the year ended 31 August 2019 to be 
acceptable in the current funding and expenditure environment. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Reserves in deficit 
Trustees note the reserve deficits held at SRWA £398k, KPS £420k, and PHS £782k. All academies have been set 
the objective of producing balanced budgets for 2020/21 (five out of six are already balanced for 2019/20) and 
ensuring that they have sustainable financial models. The trust's focus within the present funding climate is to manage 
reserves of the trust holistically and ensure robust financial management is embedded within all academies. 3-5% 
remains the trust's target reserve level, however it is acknowledged that building back to this level is a long-term 
objective. 

The pension (Local Government) reserve is also in deficit and the expectation of the trust is that this will be met by 
future increases in the annual employer's contribution to the local schemes. 

Investment policy 
The trust investment policy is low risk with a primary focus on capital security and liquidity. Funds are only deposited 
with organisations with a good credit rating. Fixed term deposits are only taken out where funds are not expected to 
be required during the duration of the term. The trust has a new treasury management policy to be implemented 
2019/20 which will further improve returns on cash holdings. 

Financial KPls 
The trust measures a number of financial KPls in order to assess the trust's performance. Financial KPls include a 
consideration of the trust's levels of funding, overheads and reserves held by the trust. 

The trustees have considered the trust's financial performance set for the year and consider the performance to be 
satisfactory . 

Going concern 
On the 20th November 2015 the trust received letters from the Regional Schools Commissioners with responsibility 
for some of the trust's academies. 

The warning letter in respect of The Littlehampton Academy noted unacceptable levels of progress in academic 
improvement in the academy and requested information on the trust's strategy to deliver better results. Since then 
The Littlehampton Academy, following an Ofsted visit in March 2016, was taken out of Special Measures. Whilst the 
academy continues to improve, the provisions of the warning letter remain in place and the Secretary of State may 
invoke his rights under the Articles of Association to direct the trust to transfer the academy to another sponsor. 

The trust met with the Regional School's Commissioner on 21 November 2018 to discuss overall performance. 
Following this meeting the RSC sent a letter on 22 November 2018 identifying the agreed trust priorities for the year 
ahead, including a commitment to review trust spending and identify opportunities to reduce projected deficits by the 
end of February 2019. Following submission of draft deficit budgets for 2018/19 the trust has and continues to work 
closely with all our academies to drive down costs, find savings and identify additional costs pressures to ensure that 
these can be managed as effectively as possible. 

As with many academies, 2018/19 proved to be a challenging year financially and the budgets set for 2018/19 
reflected these pressures. The board is aware of the financial pressures on the trust and a key strategic focus for 
2018/19 was to embed strong financial management, to ensure that the trust has a sustainable financial model. Having 
considered these factors the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the trust has adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. It continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its 
financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement 
of accounting policies. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Plans and objectives 
The trust has a robust financial and educational planning process including three-year projections. The key aims over 
the next three years are: 

To have all academies operating with balanced budgets by 2020/21 and moving forward. Currently 5/6 are 
in balance. 
To recruit a high-quality Chief Executive Officer to lead and direct the executive team to achieve its goals. 
The new CEO will review the central infrastructure to ensure it is appropriate to a growing trust. 
To recommence expansion of the trust by adding more schools. We aim to ensure the delivery of further 
substantial improvement to existing academies in order to provide sufficient comfort to the Regional Schools 
Commissioners that the trust, with the support of its sponsor The Woodard Corporation, can deliver rapid 
school improvement to more academies. 
To provide the best possible platform for all current academies to be rated Good, at the least, by Ofsted, 
including recruitment and retention of high-quality teachers. To have at least one academy rated Outstanding 
in the next three years. 
To improve examination results at all academies, including Progress 8 and Attainment 8 scores. Focus 
remains on improving the quality of teaching and learning in English (especially Literacy), Mathematics and 
Science. 
To manage reserves prudently to enable investment in key areas such as Information Technology. 
To manage SCA capital fund allowances, and to continue to seek ESFA approval to sell redundant buildings, 
to enable essential repairs, renewal and in some case rewiring of older buildings, including listed buildings. 
To increase the number of students at existing academies; pupil rolls for the year starting 1 st September 2019 
are up 4% on prior year. 
To continue to build the Woodard ethos across all academies, and to continue to improve communications 
with academies at all levels including councils and senior leadership teams. 
To continue to build more local networks to enable academies to access best practice wherever possible. 

Principal risks and uncertainties 
Trustees are responsible for the identification and management of risks for the trust as a whole. A comprehensive 
Risk Register is updated every month and reviewed at all Finance & General Purposes Committees, Audit Committees 
and the trust board. The key high level controls used by the trust include: 

• formal agendas and minutes for all meetings of the trust and its committees; 
• terms of reference for all committees, reviewed annually; 
• comprehensive strategic planning, financial forecasting, budgeting and management accounting; 
• established and identifiable organisational structures and reporting lines; 
• clear authorisation limits; 
• internal compliance checks or "responsible officer" reviews at each academy checking controls and 

processes; 
• the maintenance of the Risk Register, as noted above, which is a standing item for discussion at each board, 

Audit and Finance and General Purposes Committee meeting; 
• external audit; and 
• insurance. 

In common with every academy in the country, funding is dependent on government policy, and the trust will be 
impacted by Government's proposals to change the funding methodology for state funded schools. The deficit on the 
Local Government Pension Scheme increased to £9.667m (2018: £5.728m). Parliament has agreed, at the request 
of the Secretary of State for Education, to guarantee that, in the event of an academy closure, the Department for 
Education would meet outstanding local government pension scheme liabilities. The guarantee came into force on 18 
July 2013. 

Internally the following table summarises the top six risks identified by trustees and the controls to monitor and 
manage them. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Risk Controls in Place 
Financial DfE funding levels not increasing Robust financial planning to 

in line with costs provide capacity to react to 
changes 

Buildings Insufficient funds to repair aging Robust SCA annual planning and 
buildings especially at KPS/PHS spend prioritisation. Exploring 

ESFA support for sale of 
redundant PHS buildinqs 

Virus/data corruption Data breach or data compromised Security software and protocols in 
through attack place at all academies 

Academic Performance School improvement is not fast Extra senior management 
enough resource provided to enable Chief 

Education Officer to spend more 
time at academies and to focus on 
rapid improvement. Constant 
monitoring of data and Academy 
Improvement Plans 

Going Concern Insufficient reserves to qualify as Constant focus on robust financial 
a going concern planning led by new and 

experienced finance team. 5/6 
academies in balance for 
2019/20, and all expected to be in 
balance from 2020/21. 

Safeguarding & Child Failure to comply with Robust policies and procedures in 
Protection compliance Safeguarding regulations place and reviewed annually at 

minimum; appropriate training 
provided, safeguarding audit 
undertaken, maintenance of 
single central register, strong 
guidance for managers, strong 
DSLs at all academies 

Fundraising 
The trust is mindful of the Fundraising Regulator's code of fundraising practice. None of the trust's academies 
undertook direct fundraising activities during this accounting period. Fundraising opportunities are being assessed 
and will be reviewed to ensure compliance with the code of practice. 

Employee consultation and disabled employees 
The trust follows the provisions of its Equality and Diversity policy in the recruitment, training and development of 
staff. 

Applications from candidates with disabilities are welcomed. A statement confirming this and asking applicants to 
advise on any reasonable adjustment needed through the recruitment and selection process is included in 
correspondence with applicants. 

All staff, when they have been appointed are asked to undertake a medical placement questionnaire. This process 
provides information to the employer, which can be discussed with the employer where an employee has a disability 
for which a reasonable adjustment is required. The same approach is used with respect to access to training and 
promotion. 

Equalities data is collected with respect to Teacher Pay Progression in order to identify whether or not the data 
indicates that employees for whom protected characteristics are disadvantaged. 

The trust consults through its staff through formal and informal methods including staff consultation committees and 
regular staff meetings. The trust consults with national trade union bodies through the Woodard Joint National 
Consultative Committee. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Auditor 
RSM UK Audit LLP has indicated its willingness to continue in office. 

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditor 
Trustees have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is 
unaware. Each of the trustees have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as 
trustees in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 
communicated to the auditor. 

The Trustees' Report is approved by order of the board of trustees and the strategic report (included therein) is 
approved by the board of trustees in their capacity as the directors at a meeting on .IkeJ2, .. J.9 .... and signed on its 
behalf by: 

t~ .. Pd;jlA~ 
Mrs P Pritchard 
Chair 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Scope of responsibility 
As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Woodard Academies Trust has an 
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

Trustees have delegated the day to day responsibility to the Chief Education Officer (CEO), as Accounting Officer, 
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and 
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreements between the trust 
and the Secretary of State for Education. The CEO is supported in these duties by the executive team centrally and 
at academy level by the principals. 

The board of trustees has delegated day to day responsibility to the principals of each academy for ensuring financial 
controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the 
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between the trust and the Secretary of State 
for Education. Each principal is responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or 
breakdowns in internal control. 

Governance 
The board of trustees is supported by a committee structure that comprises: 

• A subcommittee structure, including separate education, finance and general purposes, and audit 
subcommittees. These subcommittees are responsible for monitoring the trust and reviewing performance. 

• Local academy councils, members of which are responsible for supporting principals in driving academy 
improvements, monitoring financial performance and supporting the academies' contribution to their local 
community. New Terms of Reference for academy councils were approved by trustees on 22nd October 2019. 

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the 
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 7 times during the year. Attendance 
during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows: 

Trustees Meetings Out of possible 

Mrs P Pritchard (Chair) 7 7 
Mrs M Holman 7 7 
Mr G Ogle 4 7 
MrW Pecover 4 4 
The Rev'd RC Peers 5 7 
Mrs S Pelham 5 7 
Mr A Prince 7 7 
Mrs L Trimble 2 7 
Mr J Feeney O 2 

The finance and general purposes committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to agree 
the financial strategy and policies; to oversee each academy's finances ensuring that the academy operates within 
academy financial regulations, and to ensure value for money is achieved; to oversee the maintenance and 
development of the academy sites and premises, and to consider further academic projects; to oversee the adoption 
and implementation of staffing policies and procedures, ensuring that all principles of good and fair employment 
practice are adhered to, that staff and trade unions are consulted and legal requirements fulfilled. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Attendance at finance and general purposes committee meetings in the year was as follows: 

Trustees Meetings Out of possible 

Mrs p Pritchard (Chair, Woodard Academies Trust) 4 5 
Mr W Pecover (F&GP Chair to 31st January 2019) 2 2 
Mr G Ogle (F&GP Chair from 1 st February 2019)) 4 5 
Mrs S Pelham 5 5 
Mrs L Trimble 3 5 

The audit committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to oversee audit and risk matters 
at the trust. 

Attendance at audit committee meetings in the year was as follows: 

Trustees Meetings Out of possible 

Ms V Amos (Independent Chair, appointed 17th December 2018) 3 3 
Mr G Ogle 4 4 
Mr J Feeney 1 1 
Mr A Prince 4 4 
Mr S Brooker (Independent member, resigned 17th December 2018) 2 2 
Mr N Grimston (Independent member) 4 4 

The Education Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees, its purpose is to oversee educational 
matters of the trust. 

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 

Trustees Meetinç¡s Out of possible 

Mrs M Holman (Chair, Education Committee) 5 5 
Mrs P Pritchard (Chair, Woodard Academies Trust) 4 5 
Mr R Peers 3 5 
Mrs I Bishop (Chair of the Woodard Corporation Education 4 5 
Committee, Independent member) 
Mr C Wright (Woodard Corporation Education Officer, Independent 4 5 
member) 

Review of value for money 
As Accounting Officer the Chief Education Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the trust delivers good value in 
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and 
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each 
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of 
benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the trust has delivered improved value for money 
during the year by: 

• entering into a bulk purchase agreement for energy across the trust locations 
• switching insurance providers 
• having an increased focus on maximising teaching resources by effective curriculum and staff planning 
• continuing to ensure all purchasing is made at the most economic rates 
• reviewing, challenging and controlling catering costs across the trust 
• reviewing, challenging and controlling the use of interim staff across the trust 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The purpose of the system of internal control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate a" risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievement of trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The 
system of internal control has been in place in Woodard Academies Trust for the period 1 September 2018 to 31 
August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 

Capacity to handle risk 
The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the trust is exposed together with the operating, financial 
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of the view that 
there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the trust's significant risks that has been 
in place for the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees. 

The risk and control framework 
The trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and 
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In 
particular it includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which 
are reviewed and agreed by the trust; 

• regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which detail financial 
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
• clearly defined purchasing guidelines; 
• delegation of authority and segregation of duties; 
• identification and management of risks. 

During the year 'responsible officer' reviews were carried out at each of the academies by finance staff from the 
Woodard Academies Trust central office. The reviews included giving advice on financial matters and performing a 
range of checks on the trust's financial systems. 

These checks included tests on the following: 
Sample testing of the procedures and processes in the Purchase to Pay Cycle 
Sample testing of nominal ledger journals 
Validation of month end balance sheet reconciliations and opening balances 
Assessment of the current fixed asset registers and method of maintaining relevant carrying values 
Review of the banking arrangements in each academy 

Reports were produced and presented to the Audit Committee on findings from these visits. 

Governance review 
The board of trustees is aware of the need to review its own effectiveness and, in September 2018, commissioned 
an external, independent review of governance. The findings have been reviewed in detail in 2019 and the board will 
consider implementing any changes where appropriate. 
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Review of effectiveness 
As Accounting Officer the Chief Education Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. Duringthe year in question the review has been informed by: 

.. the work of the responsible officer reviews; 
" the internal audit carried out by an external auditor of the central finance function; 
.. the work of the external auditor; 
e the financial management and governance self-assessment process; 
" the work of the senior management team within the trust who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework. 

;P~z:J: the board of trustees on >">j)~.!.",.:»t~ siqned on It, behalf by 

M" P Pritchard ~edY?,\ 
Chair Accounting Officer V 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE 

As Accounting Officer of Woodard Academies Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the board of trustees 
and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with 
terms and conditions of all funding received by the trust, under the funding agreement in place between the trust and 
the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the 
Academies Financial Handbook 2018. 

I confirm that I and the trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by 
the trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the trust's funding agreement 
and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018. 

I confirm that no instances of material irreçularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to 
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and 

r5J ~--- 
!C;KennedY 
Accounting Officer 

. ..!~: .. !f:: .. ~~ .... 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES 

Trustees (who are also the directors of Woodard Academies Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for preparing the Trustees' Report (including the strategic report) and the financial statements in accordance with the 
Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the 
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its 
income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
.. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 

to 2019; 
.. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
.. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
.. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charitable company will continue in business. 

Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and 
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are 
also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended. 

Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of 
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ..!2.:)Z..: . ..i.~L and signed on its behalf by: 

f· f~ 
Mrs P Pritchard 

Chair 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WOODARD ACADEMIES 
TRUST 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Woodard Academies Trust (the "charitable company") for the year 
ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement 
of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland" (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and the Academies: Accounts Direction 
2018 to 2019 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 
give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2019 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then 
ended; 
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and 
have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the 
FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you where: 

the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
not appropriate; or 
the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 
cast significant doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis 
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 

Other information 
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Trustees' Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in 
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

the information given in the Trustees' Report which includes the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report 
prepared for the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report, included within the Trustees' Report, have been prepared in 
accordance with applicable legal requirements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WOODARD ACADEMIES 
TRUST (CONTINUED) 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report or the Strategic 
Report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or 
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of trustees 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 21, the trustees are also 
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as 
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uklauditorsresponsibilities.This description forms part of our 
auditor's report. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of 
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable 
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or 
for the opinions we have formed. 

Hannah Catch pool (Senior Statut?ry Auditor) 
For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
25 Farringdon Street 
London 
EC4A4AB 
United Kingdom 
19..0fLCQrobRr l.OIO¡ 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds General Fixed Asset 2019 2018 

Funds Funds 
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Income and endowments from: 
Donations and capital grants 3 158 1,125 1,283 1,205 
Charitable activities: 
- Funding for educational operations 4 328 32,204 32,532 31,641 
- Funding for provision for boarding 
activities 28 306 306 396 
Other trading activities 5 1,537 1,537 1,721 
Investments 6 5 5 12 

Total 2,334 32,204 1,125 35,663 34,975 

Expenditure on: 
Raising funds 7 42 42 112 
Charitable activities: 
- Educational operations 8 1,462 34,810 2,622 38,894 38,577 
- Provision for boarding activities 28 410 410 381 

Total 7 1,914 34,810 2,622 39,346 39,070 

Net income/(expenditure) 420 (2,606) (1,497) (3,683) (4,095) 

Transfers between funds 18 (700) 1,426 (726) 

Other recognised (Iosses)/gains 
Actuarial (Iosses)/gains on defined 
benefit pension schemes 23 (2,759) (2,759) 3,035 

Net movement in funds (280) (3,939) (2,223) (6,442) (1,060) 

Reconciliation of funds 
Total funds brought forward 1,064 (5,728) 98,840 94,176 95,236 

Total funds carried forward 784 (9,667) 96,617 87,734 94,176 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019 

Company Number 6415729 

Notes 
2019 

£000 £000 

96,509 

1,424 
2.059 

3.483 

(2.591 ) 

892 

97,401 

(9.667) 

87.734 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 13 

Current assets 
Debtors 14 
Cash at bank and in hand 

Current liabilities 
Creditors: amounts falling due within one 
year 15 

Net current assets 

Net assets excluding pension liability 

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 23 

Total net assets 

Funds of the trust: 
Restricted funds 
- Restricted fixed asset funds 
- Pension reserve 

18 
96.617 
(9.667) 

86,950 

18 784 

87,734 
-- 

Total restricted funds 

Unrestricted income funds 

Total funds 

2018 
£000 £000 

98,684 

2,159 
2,290 

4,449 

(3,229) 

1,220 

99,904 

(5,728) 

94,176 
-- 

98,840 
(5,728) 

93,112 

1,064 

94,176 
-- 

The financial statements on pages 24 to 62 were approved by the board of trustees and authorised for issue 
on .. J2,: .. !:~.:.i~! ..... and are signed on their behalf by: 

.f.: ... f~ 
Mrs P Pritchard 
Chair 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

Notes 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net cash used in operating activities 22 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 
Capital grants from DfE Group 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 
the reporting period 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

(914) (1,667) 

5 12 
1,125 1,200 
(447) (1,573) 

683 (361) 

(231) (2,028) 

2,290 4,318 

2,059 2,290 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

1 Accounting policies 

General information 
Woodard Academies Trust is a Charitable Company. The address of its principal place of business and the 
nature of its operations are set out in the trustees' report. 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except 
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. 

Basis of preparation 
The financial statements of the trust have been prepared under the historical cost convention in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), 
the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities 
preparing their financial statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 
2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The trust is a public 
benefit entity under FRS 102 and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 
102. 

The trust has one subsidiary company, Woodard Academies Trust (Trading) Company Ltd. The trust holds 
100% of its ordinary share capital. Whilst the results of the subsidiary are included in these finan cial 
statements, group financial statements are not prepared as the balance sheet of the subsidiary is not 
material to the financial statements. The registered office address of Woodard Academies Trust (Trading) 
Company Ltd is 1 Adam Street, London, WC2N 6LE. 

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the functional currency of the trust. 

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where 
otherwise indicated. 

Going concern 
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material 
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Charitable 
Company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at 
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that 
the trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there 
are no material uncertainties about the trust's ability to continue as a going concern. 

The trustees have described their assessment of going concern in their report. The loss of a school would 
have a financial impact on the trust, albeit the likelihood of this is deemed to be low. Accordingly, the 
trustees have considered five year budgets that consider the financial projections of the trust until 2024 
with the remaining five schools. Should one of the schools be considered for re-brokerage out of the trust. 
After making appropriate enquiries of the analysis, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the 
trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this 
reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 

Income 
All incoming resources are recognised when the trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable 
and the amount can be measured reliably. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

1 Accounting policies (Continued) 

Grants 
Grants are ineluded in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income 
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the 
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions and 
there is no unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and ineluded in creditors 
as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before 
income is received, the income is accrued. 

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period for which it 
is receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a 
liability. 

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent 
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital 
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which 
they are expended. 

Sponsorship income 
Sponsorship income provided to the trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related 
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably. 

Donations 
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) 
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 

Other income 
Other income, including the hire of facilities and provision of boarding activities, is recognised at fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable in the period it is receivable and to the extent the trust has 
provided the goods or services. 

Expenditure 
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a 
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount 
of the obligation can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and 
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a 
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity 
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on 
a basis consistent with the use of resources. 

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 

Expenditure on raising funds 
This includes all expenditure incurred by the trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes 
costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading. 

Charitable activities 
These are costs incurred on the trust's educational operations to further its charitable aims for the benefit 
of the beneficiaries, ineluding support costs and costs relating to the governance of the trust apportioned to 
charitable activities. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

1 Accounting policies (Continued) 

Employee benefits 
The best estimate of the expenditure required to settle an obligation for termination benefits is recognised 
immediately as an expense when the Charitable Company is demonstrably committed to terminate the 
employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits. 

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of 
depreciation and any provision for impairment. Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it is probable 
that such costs will generate future economic benefits. All other costs of repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of financial activities as incurred. 

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government 
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their 
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the 
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement 
of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is 
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, so as to write off the cost of 
assets less their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases: 

Freehold and Leasehold Land and Buildings 
Assets under construction 
Computer Hardware 
Furniture and Equipment 
Motor vehicles 

50 years, or length of the lease 
Not depreciated 
4 years 
5-25 years 
4 years 

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost less any identified impairment loss. Cost includes 
professional fees and other directly attributable costs that are necessary to bring the property to its 
operating condition. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are available for use and 
reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings. 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed 
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Activities. 

Liabilities 
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the 
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the trust antici pates it will 
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it 
must provide. 

leased assets 
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight line basis over the 
period of the lease. 

Financial instruments 
The trust has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respect of financial instruments. All 
financial instruments included in the financial statements are considered basic financial instruments. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

1 Accounting policies (Continued) 

Financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the trust becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual 
obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form. 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), 
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A financial asset or financial liability that is 
payable or receivable in one year is measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be received or 
paid net of impairment, unless it is a financing transaction. If an agreement constitutes a financing 
transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments 
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts and the intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 
A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flow expire or are settled, or 
substantially all the risks and the rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or if some 
significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another 
party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial liabi lity (or part 
thereof) is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Taxation 
The trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and 
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the 
trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories 
covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable 
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 

Pensions benefits 
Retirement benefits to employees of the trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme CTPS') and 
the Local Government Pension Scheme CLGPS'), which are multi-employer defined benefit schemes, and 
a money purchase arrangement for employees of the academy trust employed in the central office. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions 
over employees' working lives with the trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level 
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Govern ment 
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method. The TPS is a multi-employer 
scheme but there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is 
therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions for both 
the TPS and the Head Office DC scheme are recognised in the period to which they relate. Differences 
between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or 
prepayments. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

1 Accounting policies (Continued) 

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the trust in 
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are 
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent 
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to th e 
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each reporting date. 
The amounts charged to net income are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, 
benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 
and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme 
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the 
rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme 
assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 

Fund accounting 
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the 
charitable objects of the trust at the discretion of the trustees. 

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by 
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the 
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. 

Agency arrangements 
The trust acts as an agent in distributing the 16-19 Bursary Funds from the ESFA. Payments received from 
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities 
as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The funds received and paid 
and any balances held are disclosed in note 27. 

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement 

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
The trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and 
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below. 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued) 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number 
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used 
in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these 
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. 
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed 
at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any 
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would 
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. The recognition of a past service cost relating to the 
McCloud judgement is also considered a critical accounting estimate. 

In the trustees' review the useful economic life of leasehold buildings is a critical accounting estimate. The 
useful economic life has been established on the basis of the valuation reports provided on transfer of the 
buildings into the trust. The trustees continue to monitor the condition of the buildings in use to ensure that 
that the remaining useful economic life is appropriate. 

3 Donations and capital grants 
Unrestricted Restricted 

funds funds 
£000 £000 

Capital grants 1,125 
Other donations 158 

158 1,125 

The income from donations and capital grants was £1,283k (2018: £1,205k) 
unrestricted (2018: £5k) and £1, 125k was restricted fixed assets (2018: £1 ,200k). 

Total Total 
2019 2018 
£000 £000 

1,125 1,200 
158 5 

1,283 1,205 

of which £158k was 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

4 Funding for the trust's charitable activities 

OfE I ESFA grants 
General annual grant (GAG) 
Other DfE group grants 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
funds funds 2019 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

29,029 29,029 28,250 
2,175 2,175 1,882 

31,204 31,204 30,132 

601 601 823 

306 306 396 
328 399 727 686 

634 399 1,033 1,082 

634 32,204 32,838 32,037 

Other government grants 
Local authority grants 

Provision for boarding activities income 
Other incoming resources 

The income from funding for educational operations was £32,532k (2018: £31,641 k) of which £328k was 
unrestricted (2018: £312k) and £32,204k was restricted (2018: £31 ,329k). 

The income from boarding activities was £306k (2018: £396k) of which £306k was unrestricted (2018: 
£396k) and £nil was restricted (2018: £nil). 

5 Other trading activities 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

funds funds 2019 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

Hire of facilities 117 117 353 
Catering income 917 917 986 
Other income 503 503 382 

1,537 1,537 1,721 

The income from other trading activities was £1,537k (2018: £1,721 k) of which £1 ,537k was unrestricted 
(2018: £1,721k). 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

6 Investment income 
Unrestricted 

funds 
£000 

Restricted 
funds 
£000 

Total 
2019 
£000 

Total 
2018 
£000 

Interest from short term deposits 5 5 12 

The income from funding for investment income was £5k (2018: £12k) of which £5k was unrestricted 
(2018: £12k). 

7 Expenditure 
Non Pay Expenditure Total Total 

Staff costs Premises Other 2019 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Expenditure on raising funds 
- Direct costs 42 42 112 
Academy's educational operations 
- Direct costs 19,551 2,900 22,451 21,749 
- Allocated support costs 8,303 5,638 2,502 16,443 16,828 
Provision for boarding 
activities 
- Direct costs 128 7 135 159 
- Allocated support costs 178 34 63 275 222 

Total costs 28,202 5,672 5,472 39,346 39,070 

The expenditure on raising funds was £42k (2018: £112k) of which £42k was unrestricted (2018: £112k). 

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2019 2018 
£000 £000 
197 170 

2,622 2,896 
162 191 

78 70 
3 3 
4 

24 14 

Operating lease rentals 
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 
Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its associates in respect of both 
audit and non-audit services are as follows: 
- Audit 
- Taxation compliance services 
- Internal audit services 
- Other services 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

8 Charitable activities 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

funds funds 2019 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 

Direct costs 
Educational operations 282 22,169 22,451 21,749 
Provision for boarding activities 135 135 159 
Support costs 
Educational operations 1,180 15,263 16,443 16,828 
Provision for boarding activities 275 275 222 

1,872 37,432 39,304 38,958 

The total expenditure of £39,304k (2018: £38,958k) on charitable activities comprises £38,894k (2018: 
£38,577k) on educational operations and £410k (2018: £381 k) on the provision for boarding activities. Of 
the expenditure on educational operations, £1,462k was unrestricted (2018: £1, 192k), £34,810k was 
restricted (2018: £34,489k) and £2,622k was restricted fixed assets (2018: £2,896k). 

The expenditure on provision for boarding activities was £410k (2018: £381 k) of which £410k was 
unrestricted (2018: £381 k). 

Educational Total Total 
Boarding operations 2019 2018 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Analysis of support costs 
Support staff costs 178 8,303 8,481 8,815 
Depreciation 2,622 2,622 2,896 
Technology costs 495 495 159 
Premises costs 34 3,016 3,050 2,970 
Other support costs 62 1,566 1,628 1,883 
Governance costs 441 442 327 

275 16,443 16,718 17,050 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

9 Staff 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

20,972 20,620 
2,011 1,976 
4,439 4,404 

27,422 27,000 
550 912 
230 113 

28,202 28,025 

Staff costs 
Staff costs during the year were: 

Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Pension costs 

Staff costs - employed 
Agency staff costs 
Staff restructuring costs 

Total staff expenditure 

Staff restructuring costs comprise: 

Redundancy payments 
Severance payments 

209 
21 

230 

55 
58 

113 

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £nil 
(2018: £27,263). Individually the payments in 2018 were: £15,000, £5,000, £3,863 and £3,400. No specific 
funding was received to support the payments of the prior year. 

Staff numbers 
The average number of persons employed by the trust during the year was as follows: 

2019 
Number 

Teachers 
Administration and support 
Management 

366 
460 
29 

855 

The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows: 
2019 

Number 

Teachers 
Administration and support 
Management 

339 
283 
29 

651 

2018 
Number 

353 
501 
10 

864 

2018 
Number 

351 
297 
10 

658 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

9 Staff (Continued) 

Higher paid staff 
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded 
£60,000 was: 

2019 
Number 

2018 
Number 

£60,001 - £70,000 
£70,001 - £80,000 
£80,001 - £90,000 
£90,001 - £100,000 
£100,001 - £110,000 
£120,001 - £130,000 
£130,001 - £140,000 

12 10 

6 
5 
2 
2 

Key management personnel 
The key management personnel of the trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as 
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) 
received by key management personnel for their services to the trust was £1,227,879 (2018: £1,197,833). 

10 Central services 

The trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year: 

Human resources 
Financial and company secretarial services 
Legal services 
Educational support and monitoring services 
IT infrastructure and software 
Project management services 
Governance services 

The trust charges for these services by a levy of 4.5 - 5.5% of GAG income. 

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2019 2018 
£000 £000 

Sir Robert Woodard Academy 262 262 
The Litllehampton Academy 380 382 
St Augustine Academy 144 131 
St Peter's Academy 285 278 
Kings Priory School 306 301 
Pol am High School 163 73 

1,540 1,427 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

11 Trustees' remuneration and expenses 

No trustees have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with the 
trust. 

During the period ended 31 August 2019, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £6,655 were 
reimbursed or paid directly to 6 trustees (2018: £4,755 to 7 trustees). 

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 25. 

12 Trustees and officers insurance 

In accordance with normal commercial practice the trust has purchased insurance to protect trustees and 
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. 
The insurance provides cover up to £1,000,000 on anyone claim and the cost for the period ended 31 
August 2019 was £5,906 (2018: £5,657). The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost. 

13 Tangible fixed assets 
Freehold Assets Computer Furniture Motor Total 

and under Hardware and vehicles 
Leasehold construction Equipment 
Land and 
Buildings 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost 
At 1 September 2018 106,030 20 7,004 2,850 122 116,026 
Additions 4 21 398 24 447 

At 31 August 2019 106,034 20 7,025 3,248 146 116,473 

Depreciation 
At 1 September 2018 8,392 6,317 2,511 122 17,342 
Charge for the year 2,121 295 200 6 2,622 

At 31 August 2019 10,513 6,612 2,711 128 19,964 

Net book value 
At 31 August 2019 95,521 20 413 537 18 96,509 

At 31 August 2018 97,638 20 687 339 98,684 

14 Debtors 2019 2018 
£000 £000 

Trade debtors 287 960 
VAT recoverable 299 339 
Other debtors 21 93 
Prepayments and accrued income 817 767 

1,424 2,159 
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WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

1S Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Deferred income at 31 August 2019 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

611 818 
135 125 
356 1,289 

1,489 997 

2,591 3,229 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

1,065 559 

559 596 
(559) (596) 

1,065 559 

1,065 559 

Trade creditors 
Other taxation and social security 
Other creditors 
Accruals and deferred income (see note 16) 

16 Deferred income 

Deferred income is included within: 
Creditors due within one year 

Deferred income at 1 September 2018 
Released from previous years 
Resources deferred in the year 

The deferred income represents pupil premium funding, universal infant free school meals, rates 
reimbursements, SEN funding and parental contributions for school trips relating to the financial year 
ending 31 August 2020 received in advance by the academies. 

17 Financial instruments 
2019 2018 
£000 £000 

Carrying amount of financial assets 
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 684 1,425 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised cost 2,034 2,505 
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18 Funds 
Balance at Gains, Balance at 

1 September losses and 31 August 
2018 Income Expenditure transfers 2019 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Restricted general funds 
General Annual Grant (GAG) 29,029 (30,455) 1,426 
Other OtE I ESFA grants 2,175 (2,175) 
Other government grants 601 (601) 
Other restricted funds 399 (399) 
Pension reserve (5,728) (1,180) (2,759) (9,667) 

(5,728) 32,204 (34,810) (1,333) (9,667) 

Restricted fixed asset funds 
Inherited on conversion 17,799 (472) 17,327 
OfE group capital grants 79,699 1,125 (2,114) (726) 77,984 
Private sector capital 
sponsorship 1,342 (36) 1,306 

98,840 1,125 (2,622) (726) 96,617 

Total restricted funds 93,112 33,329 (37,432) (2,059) 86,950 

Unrestricted funds 
General funds 1,049 2,028 (1,504) (700) 873 
Provision for boarding 
activities 15 306 (410) (89) 

1,064 2,334 (1,914) (700) 784 

Total funds 94,176 35,663 (39,346) (2,759) 87,734 
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18 Funds (Continued) 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

Restricted funds are applied specifically in accordance with the rules of each grant and support the 
education provision delivered by the trust. 

General Annual Grant (GAG) funds are for the purpose of running the academies in accordance with the 
Funding Agreement with the Secretary of State and along guidelines as set out in the Academies Financial 
Handbook. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the trust was not subject to a limit on 
the GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2019. 

Other OfE / ESFA grants funds have arisen from funding received for the furtherance of the trust's activities 
that are not funded through the General Annual Grant. 

Other restricted funds have arisen from non grant related income that the trust has received. The monies 
have to be used for the benefit of the trust, but there are no restrictions on when these monies can be 
spent. 

The Pension Reserve is the liability that has arisen from the Local Government Pension Scheme. See note 
23 for further details on this liability. 

The Private Sector Capital Sponsorship fund relates to funds originally received from the Woodard 
Corporation to purchase capital items. 

Restricted fixed asset funds are applied to the maintenance and improvement of the trust's fixed assets. A 
transfer of £24k was made from unrestricted funds to restricted fixed asset funds to cover capital 
expenditure on motor vehicles incurred during the year (2018: £95k). In addition, a transfer of £750k was 
made from restricted fixed asset funds, being the capital funding that has been spent on maintenance and 
repairs and assets below the capitalisation threshold in the year (2018: £111k). 

Unrestricted funds are applied to the general work of the trust to support activities inside and outside the 
curriculum. A transfer has been made to the restricted general fund from the unrestricted general fund of 
£700k (2018: £1,911 k) to remove the deficit on restricted funds which represents the balance of unfunded 
expenditure from the restricted fund in the current year. 
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18 Funds (Continued) 

Funds prior year 

Balance at Gains, Balance at 
1 September losses and 31 August 

2017 Income Expenditure transfers 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Restricted general funds 
General Annual Grant (GAG) 28,250 (30,177) 1,927 
Other OfE / ESFA grants 1,882 (1,882) 
Other government grants 823 (823) 
Other restricted funds 374 (374) 
Pension reserve (7,530) (1,233) 3,035 (5,728) 

(7,530) 31,329 (34,489) 4,962 (5,728) 

Restricted fixed asset funds 
Transfer on conversion 18,327 (528) 17,799 
OfE group capital grants 80,843 1,200 (2,328) (16) 79,699 
Private sector capital 
sponsorship 1,382 (40) 1,342 

100,552 1,200 (2,896) (16) 98,840 

Total restricted funds 93,022 32,529 (37,385) 4,946 93,112 

Unrestricted funds 
General funds 2,214 2,050 (1,304) (1,911) 1,049 
Provision for boarding 
activities 396 (381) 15 

2,214 2,446 (1,685) (1,911) 1,064 

Total funds 95,236 34,975 (39,070) 3,035 94,176 
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18 Funds (Continued) 

Total funds analysis by academy 

Restricted fixed asset fund 
Pension reserve 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

(398) (228) 
1,433 1,261 

185 155 
590 615 
(420) (577) 
(782) (251) 
137 106 
39 (17) 

784 1,064 

96,617 98,840 
(9,667) (5,728) 

87,734 94,176 

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 were allocated as follows: 

Sir Robert Woodard Academy 
The Littlehampton Academy 
St Augustine Academy 
St Peter's Academy 
Kings Priory School 
Polam High School 
Trading company 
Central services 

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 

Total funds 

Kings Priory School is carrying a net deficit of £420k because the school continues to restructure from its 
previous budget arrangements as a fee paying independent school. 

The trust notes the deficit budgets held at Sir Robert Woodard Academy of £398k, Kings Priory School of 
£420k and Polam High School of £782k. All academies have been set the objective of producing balanced 
budgets for 2020/21 and ensuring that they have sustainable financial models. The trust's focus within the 
present funding climate is to manage reserves of the full Trust holistically and ensure robust financial 
management is embedded within all academies. 3-5% remains the trust's target reserve level, however it is 
acknowledged that building back to this level is a long term objective. 
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18 Funds (Continued) 

Total cost analysis by academy 

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows: 

Teaching and Other costs 
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total 

support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2019 2018 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Sir Robert Woodard 
Academy 3,467 1,168 392 833 5,860 6,018 
The Littlehampton 
Academy 4,547 1,573 455 1,112 7,687 8,118 
St Augustine Academy 2,363 875 219 419 3,876 3,775 
St Peter's Academy 2,932 1,605 452 1,133 6,122 5,658 
Kings Priory School 4,300 1,093 501 985 6,879 6,589 
Polam High School 2,066 1,382 337 678 4,463 4,108 
Trading company 42 42 103 
Central services 789 291 715 1,795 1,805 

19,675 8,527 2,647 5,875 36,724 36,174 

19 Analysis of net assets between funds 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Funds General Fixed Asset Funds 
Funds Funds 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are 
represented by: 
Tangible fixed assets 96,509 96,509 
Current assets 784 2,591 108 3,483 
Creditors falling due within one year (2,591 ) (2,591) 
Defined benefit pension liability (9,667) (9,667) 

Total net assets 784 (9,667) 96,617 87,734 
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19 Analysis of net assets between funds (Continued) 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

Restricted 
General 
Funds 
£000 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
£000 

Total 
Funds 

£000 £000 
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 are 
represented by: 
Tangible fixed assets 
Current assets 
Creditors falling due within one year 
Defined benefit pension liability 

1,064 3,229 
(3,229) 
(5,728) 

98,684 
156 

98,684 
4.449 
(3,229) 
(5,728) 

Total net assets 1,064 (5,728) 98,840 94,176 

20 Capital commitments 
2019 2018 
£000 £000 

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 31 35 

21 Commitments under operating leases 

At 31 August 2019 the total of the trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 
leases was: 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

Amounts due within one year 91 102 
Amounts due between one and five years 181 245 

272 347 
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22 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities 

Net cash used in operating activities 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

(3,683) (4,095) 

(1,125) (1,200) 
(5) (12) 

1,018 1,042 
162 191 

2,622 2,896 

735 79 
(638) (568) 

(914) (1,667) 

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial 
activities) 

Adjusted for: 
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 
Interest receivable 
Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable 
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 

Movements in working capital: 
Decrease in debtors 
(Decrease) in creditors 

23 Pension and similar obligations 

The trust's employees belong to three principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England 
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non 
teaching staff; and a money purchase arrangement for employees of the trust employed in the central 
office. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 
March 2016. 

Contributions amounting to £30k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 (2018: £30k) and are 
included within other creditors. 

Central office money purchase scheme 

Trust employees employed in the central office are offered a non contributory scheme administered by 
Royal London and contributes to individual other schemes. The trust contributed 8% of gross salary per 
year for all central employees. During the year £51 k (2018: £80k) was contributed by the trust to the 
scheme. 

Teachers' Pension Scheme 

Introduction 
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the 
Teachers' Pensions 2014. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions 
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme 
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS 
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 
published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial 
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and 
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in 
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. 

The valuation report was published in April 2019. The key results of the valuation and subsequent 
consultation are: 

• Total scheme liabilities for service (pensions currently payable and the estimated cost of future 
benefits) of £218 billion 

• Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds from the 
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196 billion 

• Notional past service deficit of £22 billion 
• Discount rate is 2.4% in excess of CPI 

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay from 
September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/19). DtE has agreed to pay a teachers' 
pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2019/20 academic year. 

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £2,253k (2018: £2,078k). 

The TPS is a multi-employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for the scheme as 
a defined benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered 
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years for 
employees are 5.50% to 12.5%. The agreed contribution rates for future years for employers are as 
follows: 

West Sussex County Council Scheme (19.0%) - Sir Robert Woodard Academy and The Littlehampton 
Academy 
Kent County Council Scheme (19.8%) - Saint Augustine Academy 
Stoke City County Council Scheme (20.2%) - Saint Peter's Academy 
South Tyneside Council Scheme (21.2%) - Kings Priory School 
Durham County Council Scheme (18.3%) - Polam Hall School 

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the 
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the 
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. 

The current valuation does not reflect the expected increase in benefits and therefore liability as a result of 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension ('GMP') equalisation between men and women which is required as a result 
of the removal of the Additional State Pension. Methodologies for a long-term solution are still being 
investigated by the Government as set out in the published (January 2018) outcome of the Government 
Consultation 'Indexation and Equalisation of GMP in Public Sector Pensions Schemes' and therefore the 
expected impact cannot be reliably estimated and consequently no provisionlliability has been recognised. 

The current valuation reflects the implications of the McCloud judgement. A past service cost of £ 184,000 
has been recognised in the year as a result of this. 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

2019 2018 
The deficit for the year is allocated: £000 £000 

Sir Robert Woodard Academy (1,795) (951) 
The Littlehampton Academy (1,339) (321) 
St Augustine Academy (1,441) (973) 
St Peter's Academy (3,923) (2,996) 
Kings Priory School (741) (291) 
Polam Hall School (428) (196) 

(9,667) (5,728) 

The assets and obligations comprising the deficit for the year is as follows: 

Assets Obligations Deficit 
£000 £000 £000 

Sir Robert Woodard Academy 5,615 (7,410) (1,795) 
The Littlehampton Academy 8,510 (9,849) (1,339) 
St Augustine Academy 2,105 (3,546) (1,441) 
St Peter's Academy 3,273 (7,196) (3,923) 
Kings Priory School 2,076 (2,817) (741) 
Pol am Hall School 1,253 (1,681) (428) 

22,832 (32,499) (9,667) 

The total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities is as follows: 

Service cost Net interest Plan Deficit 
introd uctions 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Sir Robert Woodard Academy 365 29 51 445 
The Littlehampton Academy 462 12 76 550 
St Augustine Academy 273 24 23 320 
St Peter's Academy 359 86 34 479 
Kings Priory School 261 6 267 
Polam Hall School 231 4 235 

1,951 161 184 2,296 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

Local Government Pension Scheme - Sir Robert Woodard Academy 

Principal actuarial assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 
31 August 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

2019 2018 
% % 

Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

3.00 
2.30 
1.90 

3.00 
2.40 
2.50 

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Net liability 

2019 2018 
Years Years 

21.80 23.60 
23.00 25.00 

23.60 26.00 
25.50 27.80 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

5,615 4,938 
(7,410) (5,889) 

(1,795) 1,067 

Retiring today 
- Males 
- Females 
Retiring in 20 years 
- Males 
- Females 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 

Scheme assets 
Scheme obligations 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

The trust's share of the assets in the scheme 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Cash 

2019 2018 
Fair value Fair value 

£000 £000 

2,808 2,667 
2,078 1,728 
449 395 
281 148 

5,616 4,938 Total fair value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £427k (2018: £303k). 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 
Past service cost 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

365 435 
29 40 
51 

445 475 

2019 
£000 

5,889 
365 
171 
59 

875 
51 

7,410 

Total operating charge 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

At 1 September 2018 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Actuarialloss/(gain) 
Past service cost 

At 31 August 2019 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

Changes in the fair value of the trust's share of scheme assets 

At 1 September 2018 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 

At 31 August 2019 

Local Government Pension Scheme - The Litllehampton Academy 

2019 
£000 

4,938 
142 
285 
191 
59 

5,615 

Principal actuarial assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 
31 August 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in paymenUinflation 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Retiring today 
- Males 
- Females 
Retiring in 20 years 
- Males 
- Females 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 

Scheme assets 
Scheme obligations 

Net liability 

2019 2018 
% % 

3.00 
2.30 
1.90 

3.00 
2.30 
2.80 

2019 2018 
Years Years 

21.80 
23.60 

23.60 
25.00 

23.00 
25.50 

26.00 
27.80 

8,510 
(9,849) 

7,529 
(7,850) 

(1,339) (321) 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

The trust's share of the assets in the scheme 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Cash 

2019 2018 
Fair value Fair value 

£000 £000 

4,255 4,066 
3,149 2,635 
681 602 
425 226 

8,510 7,529 Total fair value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £650k (2018: £463k). 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 
Past service cost 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

462 628 
12 31 
76 

550 659 

2019 
£000 

7,850 
462 
227 
72 

1,162 
76 

9,849 

Total operating charge 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

At 1 September 2018 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Actuarialloss/(gain) 
Past service cost 

At 31 August 2019 
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Changes in the fair value of the trust's share of scheme assets 

At 1 September 2018 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 

At 31 August 2019 

Local Government Pension Scheme - St Peter's Academy 

2019 
£000 

7,529 
215 
435 
259 
72 

8,510 

Principal actuarial assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 
31 August 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Retiring today 
- Males 
- Females 
Retiring in 20 years 
- Males 
- Females 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 

Scheme assets 
Scheme obligations 

Net liability 

2019 2018 
% % 

2.70 
2.30 
1.80 

2.80 
2.40 
2.80 

2019 2018 
Years Years 

21.10 
23.50 

22.10 
24.40 

22.20 
24.50 

24.10 
26.40 

3,273 
(7,196) 

2,867 
(5,863) 

(3,923) (2,996) 

- 53- 



WOODARD ACADEMIES TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 

23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

The trust's share of the assets in the scheme 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Cash 

2019 2018 
Fair value Fair value 

£000 £000 

2,226 2,007 
720 545 
262 229 
65 86 

3,273 2,867 Total fair value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £187k (2018: £174k). 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 
Past service cost 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

359 356 
86 84 
34 

479 440 

2019 
£000 

5,863 
359 
169 
58 

776 
(63) 
34 

7,196 

Total operating charge 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

At 1 September 2018 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Actuarialloss/(gain) 
Benefits paid 
Past service cost 

At 31 August 2019 
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Changes in the fair value of the trust's share of scheme assets 

At 1 September 2018 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 

At 31 August 2019 

local Government Pension Scheme - St Augustine Academy 

2019 
£000 

2,867 
83 

104 
224 
58 

(63) 

3,273 

Principal actuarial assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 
31 August 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in paymenUinfiation 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Retiring today 
- Males 
- Females 
Retiring in 20 years 
- Males 
- Females 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 

Scheme assets 
Scheme obligations 

Net liability 

2019 2018 
% % 

3.75 
2.25 
1.85 

3.80 
2.30 
2.65 

2019 2018 
Years Years 

22.10 
24.00 

23.10 
25.20 

23.70 
25.80 

25.30 
27.50 

2,105 
(3,546) 

1,930 
(2,903) 

(1,441) (973) 
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The trust's share of the assets in the scheme 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Other assets 

2019 2018 
Fair value Fair value 

£000 £000 

1,599 1,446 
205 186 
245 239 
56 59 

2,105 1,930 Total fair value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £88k (2018: £79k). 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 2019 
£000 

2018 
£000 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 
Past service cost 
Administration expenses 

273 
24 
23 

289 
27 

Total operating charge 321 317 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2019 
£000 

At 1 September 2018 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 
Past service cost 
Change in financial assumptions 

2,903 
273 
76 
45 

(105) 
23 

331 

At 31 August 2019 3,546 
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Changes in the fair value of the trust's share of scheme assets 

At 1 September 2018 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 
Administration expenses 

At 31 August 2019 

Local Government Pension Scheme - Kings Priory School 

2019 
£000 

1,930 
52 
36 

148 
45 

(105) 
(1 ) 

2,105 

Principal actuarial assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 
31 August 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in paymenUinfiation 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Retiring today 
- Males 
- Females 
Retiring in 20 years 
- Males 
- Females 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 

Scheme assets 
Scheme obligations 

Net liability 

2019 2018 
% % 

3.50 
2.00 
1.90 

3.50 
2.00 
2.00 

2019 2018 
Years Years 

21.90 
23.60 

22.90 
26.40 

25.10 
26.90 

25.10 
28.70 

2,076 
(2,817) 

1,785 
(2,076) 

(741 ) (291) 
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The trust's share of the assets in the scheme 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Cash 

2019 2018 
Fair value Fair value 

£000 £000 

1,531 1,323 
322 271 
179 152 
44 39 

2,076 1,785 Total fair value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £120k (2018: £103k). 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 
Past service cost 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

261 273 
6 7 

55 

267 335 

2019 
£000 

2,076 
261 
58 
47 

405 
(30) 

2,817 

Total operating charge 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

At 1 September 2018 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Actuarial loss/(gain) 
Benefits paid 

At 31 August 2019 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

Changes in the fair value of the trust's share of scheme assets 

At 1 September 2018 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 

At 31 August 2019 

local Government Pension Scheme - Polam Hall School 

2019 
£000 

1,785 
52 
68 

154 
47 

(30) 

2,076 

Principal actuarial assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated to 
31 August 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Rate of increase in salaries 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Retiring today 
- Males 
- Females 
Retiring in 20 years 
- Males 
- Females 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 

Scheme assets 
Scheme obligations 

Net liability 

2019 2018 
% % 

3.60 
2.10 
1.90 

3.50 
2.00 
2.80 

2019 2018 
Years Years 

22.30 
24.00 

23.30 
25.00 

23.80 
25.70 

25.50 
27.30 

1,253 
(1,681) 

705 
(901 ) 

(428) (196) 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

The trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2019 2018 
Fair value Fair value 

£000 £000 

631 342 
469 269 
90 48 
63 46 

1,253 705 

Equities 
Bonds 
Property 
Cash 

Total fair value of assets 

The actual return on scheme assets was £98k (2018: £26k). 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 

2019 2018 
£000 £000 

231 208 
4 2 

235 210 

2019 
£000 

901 
231 
30 
46 

210 
263 

1,681 

Total operating charge 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

At 1 September 2018 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Actuarial loss/(gain) 
Benefits paid 

At 31 August 2019 
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23 Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

Changes in the fair value of the trust's share of scheme assets 
2019 
£000 

At 1 September 2018 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 

705 
26 
72 

141 
46 

263 

At 31 August 2019 1,253 

24 Members' liability 

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the 
event of it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a 
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before 
he or she ceases to be a member. 

25 Related party transactions 

Patricia Pritchard, Trustee and Chair of Woodard Academies Trust provided consultancy services for Lee 
Bolton Monier-Williams solicitors in 2018. In her role as a consultant of the firm, she did not provide any 
advice to Woodard Academies Trust. The domestic partner of Anne Davey (Trustee - resigned 31 August 
2018) is a partner at Lee Bolton Monier-Williams solicitors and he advised Woodard Academies Trust in 
connection with re-brokering existing academies within the trust and adding new academies to the trust in 
2018. The potential conflict of interest for both trustees was declared and transactions between the trust 
and Lee Bolton Monier-Williams were undertaken on an 'non-commercial basis' during 2018. During the 
year ended 31 August 2019 £Nil (2018: £8,771) was paid to Lee Bolton Monier-Williams solicitors in 
respect of professional services. As at 31 August 2019, £Nil was owed to Lee Bolton Monier-Williams 
(2018: £nil). These transactions were in line with the Academies Financial handbook and the trust's own 
financial regulation and procurement procedures. Lee Bolton Monier-Williams solicitors are no longer a 
related party of the trust as no trustees held an interest in the company during the 2019 year. 

During the year ended 31 August 2019 £114,000 (2018: £nil) was received from the principal sponsor, 
Woodard Corporation, in respect of donations. As at 31 August 2019, £114,000 was owed to the trust 
(2018: £83,154). 

26 Ultimate holding company 

The Woodard Corporation (incorporated in England and Wales, company no. 4659710 and registered 
charity no.1 096270), whose principal purpose is to act as a holding company for independent schools and 
academies, exerts a dominant influence over the trust as the Memorandum and Articles of the trust allow 
The Woodard Corporation to appoint and remove the majority of the trustees (the 'sponsor directors') and 
the two companies work closely together. The Woodard Corporation is the smallest and largest group 
undertaking that consolidates the results of the Woodard Academies Trust into its consolidated financial 
statements. The accounts of the Woodard Corporation can be obtained from Woodard Schools, High 
Street, Abbots Bromley, Rugeley, Staffs, WS 15 3BW. 
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27 Agency arrangements 

The trust administers the disbursement of 16-19 Bursary Funds on behalf of the ESFA. In the year it 
received £42k (2018: £30k) and disbursed £26k (2018: £25k) with an amount of £21k (2018: £5k) due for 
payment at 31 August 2019 included in other creditors. 

28 Provision for boarding activities trading account 2019 
£000 

2018 
£000 £000 £000 

Direct income 
Fee income 306 396 

Direct costs 
Direct staff costs 
Educational supplies and services 

128 
7 

Total expenditure (410) 

153 
6 

159 

152 
9 
1 
5 

10 
2 

38 
4 
1 

222 

(381) 

15 

135 

Other costs 
Support staff costs 
Maintenance of premises and equipment 
Cleaning 
Energy costs 
Rent and rates 
Insurance 
Catering 
Other support costs 
Share of governance costs 

178 
2 

12 
19 

49 
13 

275 

(Deficit)/surplus from all sources (104) 

Provision for boarding activities balances at 1 September 
2018 15 

Provision for boarding activities balances at 31 August 
2019 (89) 15 
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Conclusion 
We have carried out an engagement in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 July 2018 
and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency ("ESFA") as included in the 
Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure 
disbursed and income received by Woodard Academies Trust during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 
2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the 
authorities which govern them. 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 has not 
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities 
which govern them. 

Basis for conclusion 
The framework that has been applied is set out in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 Part 9: 
Regularity Reporting. We are independent of Woodard Academies Trust in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are applicable to this engagement and we have fulfilled our ethical requirements in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe the assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to 
provide a basis for our conclusion. 

Responsibilities of Woodard Academies Trust's accounting officer and trustees 
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Woodard Academies Trust's funding agreement 
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 5 July 2013 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 
1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes 
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. The 
accounting officer is also responsible for preparing the Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance. The 
trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for the proper conduct and financial operation of Woodard Academies Trust and appointment of the accounting 
officer. 

Reporting Accountant's responsibilities for reporting on regularity 
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical 
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on 
regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement 
and the procedures vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for a reasonable assurance 
engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement does not enable us to obtain assurance that we 
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. 
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 

We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all 
material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 
2019 have not been applied to purposes identified by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not 
conform to the authorities which govern them. 
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Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, 
policies and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities 
including the specific requirements of the funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education, the 
Academies Financial Handbook 2018 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and high level 
financial control areas where we identified a material risk of irregularity is likely to arise. It also included areas 
assessed as presenting a higher risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed testing, on a sample basis, based 
on the identified areas where a material irregularity is likely to arise, or potential impropriety where such areas 
are in respect of controls, policies and procedures that apply to classes of transactions. Our work was 
undertaken with due regard to the 'Evidence to support conclusion on regularity' guidance in Academies 
Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. 

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements and evidence was also derived from the 
conduct of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conclusion. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to Woodard Academies Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our 
engagement letter dated 1 July 2018. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Woodard 
Academies Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Woodard 
Academies Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

RSM UK Audit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
25 Farringdon Street 
London 
EC4A4AB 
United Kingdom 

Dated: .1.9 .. P.~~. 2.0\'\ 


